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PLAINTIFES ORIGINAL COMPLAINT

COME NOW Hantiffs Children of ISKCON, & d. (“Pantiffs’) and file this Origind Complaint

complaining of the Internationa Sodiety for Krishna Consciousness (“ISKCON”), e d., and date the fdlowing:

PARTIES

PLAINTIFFS:

All the Fantiffsnamed heran were minors a the time of the sexud, emationd, mental and physcd abuse

and exploitation dleged herein.
1. Fantiff Lanrence Anderson resdesin North Cardlina
2. Hantiff John Baez resdesin Horida
3 Fantiff Benjamin Bressack resdesin Horida
4, Faintiff Anna Carlson resdesin Oregon.
5. Fantiff Krena Shakti Carlson resdesin Oregon.
6. Raintiff Heidi Chacon resdesin Horida
7. Fantiff Maya Charndl resdesin British Coumbia, Canada
8. Haintiff Jacob Chetteron resdes in British Columbia, Canada
9. Fantiff James Peter Chatterton resdesin London, England.
10.  PRaintiff Christopher Chircop resdesin Horida
11.  Pantiff Zoltan Corbett reddesin Cdifornia
12.  PFantff Kath Domingo resdesin Pennsylvania
13.  Pantff Abhay Durr resdesin Horida
14.  Pantiff Mdody Gedeon resdesin Horida
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15.  Plaintiff TinaHebd resdesin North Cardlina

16.  Pantiff NirmadaHickey resdesin Horida

17.  Hantiff Jens Jensen resdesin Cdifornia

18.  Paintiff Vishaka Jokid resdesin Kailua Hawail.

19.  Hantiff Nadim Kegen resdesin New York.

20.  PRantiff LakamanaKeyesresdesin Colorado.

21.  Pantff TrishaKlimek resdesin Cdifomnia

22 Pantiff Brgadevi Levine resdesin British Caumbia, Caneda
23.  PFantiff Greg Luczyk resdesin British Columbia, Canada
24.  PFantiff Frank Lyonsresdesin Pennsylvania

25.  PFantiff NaryanalLyonsresdesin Pennsylvania

26.  Pantff Joi McMillon residesin Horida

27.  Pantff Tgh Miller resdesin Cdiformia

28.  Pantiff Joey Mussacchio residesin Quebec, Canada.

Plaintiff Yuri Nesbitt resdesin Colorado.

3

8

Fantiff Anya Pourchot resdesin Cdifornia

31l  PRantff Bridgette Rittenour resdesin Brownwood, Texas
Rantiff Stephanie Rumple resdesin North Cardlina
Fantiff Uddhava Samanich resdesin New York.

Flaintiff Suta.das Schramm resdesin Arizona

Plantiff Brgarani Scosdaresdesin lllinois

Fantff Vilaan Siveman resdesin Maryland.
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37.  PRantiff Ananta Sofsky resdesin New York.

3B.  Rantiff Jugin Sofsky resdesin New York.

8

Fantiff Chrisgopher Strayhorn resdesin Cdifornia
40, Rantiff Corrina Tillmon resdesin New Y ork.
41, Rantiff Jessca Tillmon resdesin Cdifornia

42. Pantiff Sta Tortorice resdesin Wisconan.

&

Plantiff David Tourjee resdesin New Jersey.

44, Rantff Damian War resdesin Cdifornia

DEFENDANTS:

1. Defendant Internationd Society For KrishnaConsciousness, or “1SKCON,” isan unincorporated
assodation with its principa places of business located in various places throughout the United States, induding
Cdiforniaand Horida Service of processmay be made upon Defendant ISKCON by sarving RavindraSvarupa
Dasak/aWilliam Deadwyler, 111, the Charman of the Governing Body of Commissoners Heresdesa 41 West
Allens Lane, Philaddphia, Pennsylvania 19119.

2. Defendant DAMODAR TITLE HOLDING CORPORATION OF DALLAS INC,, isaTexas
corporation heedquartered in Texas. Itsprincipd place of busnessaddressis5430 Gurley Avenue, Ddlas, Texas
75223. 1t may be served by sarving its registered agent for service of process, Tom Ker.

3. Defendant INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FORKRISHNA CONSCIOUSNESSisaWashington
corporation headquartered in Washington. Its principa place of business addressis 3114 E. Pine S, Sedttle,
Washington. It may be served by sarving its registered agent for service of process, Bruce Mdzack.

4. Defendant ISKCON FOUNDATION, INC. isaHorida corporation heedquartered in Horida
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Its principa place of busness addressis P.O. Box 1119, Alachua, Horida 32615. It may be served by sarving
its registered agent for sarvice of process, Naveen Khurana, 18104 N.W. County Road 239, Alachua, Horida
32615.

5. Defendant INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FOR KRISHNA CONSCIOUSNESS OF
WASHINGTON is a Washington corporation headquartered in Washington. Its principa place of busness
addressis 1420 228" Ave. SE, Issaguah, Washington, 98027. It may be sarved by sarving its registered agent
for sarvice of process, Harry Terhanian.

6. Defendant ISKCON, INC. is a Pennsylvania corporation heedquartered in Pennsylvania. Its
principa place of busness addressis RD #2, Box 1075, Port Royd, Pennsylvania 17082.

7. Defendant ISKCON KRISHNAFEST USA, INC. is a Texas corporation headquartered in
Texas Itsprindpa place of busness addressis 5430 Gurley Avenue, Ddlas, Texas 75223, It may be served
by serving its registered agent for service of process, George Levington.

8. Defendant ISKCON OF LAKE HUNTINGTON PROPERTY CORPORATION isaNew
Y ork corporation headquartered in New York. Its principa place of business addressis P.O. Box 338, New
York, New York 12752.

9.  ISKCON OFPORT ROYAL, INC. isaPennsylvaniacorporation heedquartered in Pennsylvania
Its principd place of busnessis RD #1, Port Royd, Pennsylvania 17082.

10. Defendant ISKCON OF WEST VIRGINIA isaWes Virginia corporation heedquartered in
West Virginia Itsprindpd place of busnessaddressisRD 1 NBU 24, MoundsvilleWest Virginia26041. 1t may
be sarved by sarving its registered agent for sarvice of process, David Waterman.

11. Defendant TEXASKRISHNAS, INC.isaTexascorporaion heedquarteredin Texas. Itsprincipd

place of busnessaddressis 5430 Gurley Avenue, Ddlas, Texas 75223. 1t may be served with processby serving
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its registered agent for sarvice of process, Joe Dinoffer.

12. Defendant ISKCON TELEVISION, INC. isaCdiforniacorporation heedquartered in Topanga,
Cdifornia Itsprincipd place of busnessaddressis P.O. Box 556, Topanga, Cdifornia90290. It may be served
with process by sarving its registered agent for service of process, Jeanne Carr, 6133 Brisol Parkway, #100,
Culver City, Cdifornia 90230.

13. Defendant ISKCON OF LOS ANGELESisaCdiforniacorporation heedquartered in Cdifornia
It may be served with process by sarving its registered agent for service of process, Robert P. Owen, 3714
Watseka Avenue, Los Angdles, Cdifornia 90034.

14. Defendant ISKCON OF CALIFORNIA, INC. is a Cdifornia corporation heedquartered in
Cdifornia It may be served with process by sarving itsregistered agent for service of process, Robert P. Owen,
3764 Watseka Avenue, Los Angdes, Cdifornia 90034.

15. Defendant ISKCON OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA isaCdiforniacorporation headquartered
in Cdifornia It may be served with process by sarving its registered agent for sarvice of process, Dennis Brown,
3765 Watseka Avenue, Suite E, Los Angdes, Cdifornia 90034.

16. Defendant 1ISKCON OF SAN DIEGO isaCdifornia corporation heedquartered in Cdifornia
It may be served with process by serving its registered agent for service of process, David Bridges, 1030 Grand
Avenue, San Diego, Cdifornia 921009.

17. Defendant GREGORY GOTTFRIED isan Executor of the Edateof A.C. BHAKTIVEDANTA
SWAMI PRABHUPADA; heresdesin Bangkok, Thalland.

18. Defendant ROBERT GRANT isan Executor of the Edate of A.C. BHAKTIVEDANTA SWAMI
PRABHUPADA; heresdesin New York.

19. Defendant THOMAS HERTZOG s an Executor of the Edate of A.C. BHAKTIVEDANTA
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SWAMI PRABHUPADA; as &t forth bdow, heresdesin Ddlas, Texas.

20. Defendant GHOPAL KHANNA is an Executor of the Estate of A.C. BHAKTIVEDANTA
SWAMI PRABHUPADA,; as s forth below, he residesin Montredl, Quebec.

21. Defendant HOWARD RESNICK is an Executor of the Edae of A.C. BHAKTIVEDANTA
SWAMI PRABHUPADA, as st forth bdow, he resdesin Bevely Hills, Cdifornia

22. Deendant GLEN TETON isan Executor of the Estate of A.C. BHAKTIVEDANTA SWAMI

PRABHUPADA; his address and wheresbouts are unknown.

DEFENDANT MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING
BODY OF COMMISSIONERS (GBC) RESIDING IN THE U.SA

1 Defendant FARAMARZ ATTAR (Krishna name, “Atreya R das’) resdes a@ 550 North
Eisenhower Drive, Beckley, W. Virginia 25801. Mr. Attar was a member of ISKCON'’S governing body
commisson (the“GBC’) from 1975 to 1987.

2.  Deendant CHARLESBACIS (Krishnaname, “ Bhavanandadas’) wasamember of the GBC from
197810 1987. Hemay be served & 1SKCON, 383 Lenox Avenue, Detroit, Michigan 48215.

3. Defendant WILLIAM BERKE (Krishnaname, “Bdi Mardan das’) is aresdent of New York,
New York. Mr. Berke was amember of the GBC from 1977 to 1978.

4, Defendant ROBERT CORENS, (Krishnaname, “ RapanugaSwami”) resdesin Alachua, Horida
Mr. Corens was amember of the GBC from 1978 to 1986.

S. Defendant WILLIAM DEADWY LER, 111 (Krishnaname, “RavindraSvarupaDas’) is Charman
of the Governing Body of Commissoners Heresdesat 41 Wes AllensLane, Philadd phia, Pennsylvania19119.

6. Defendant WILLIAM EHRLICHMAN (Krishna name, “Bhagavan Svami”) is a resdent of

Bekdey, Cdifornia Mr. Ehrlichman was amember of the GBC from 1975 to 1987.
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7. Defendant JOHN FAVORS (Krishna name, “Bhakti Tirtha Svami”) resides a 600 Ninth &,
N.E., Washington D.C. 20002. Mr. Favorswas amember of the GBC from 1982 to 1999.

8. Defendant STEVEN GOREY NO ak/aSTEVEN GUARINO (Krishnaname, “ Satsvarupadas’)
isaresdent of Bdtimore, Maryland. Mr. Goreyno alk/a Guarino wasamember of the GBC from 1975to 1937.

0. Defendant MICHAEL GRANT (Krishnaname, “MukundaGosvami”) resdesa 10310 Oaklyn
Drive, Potomac, Maryland 20854. Mr. Grant was amember of the GBC from 1984 to 1999.

10. Defendant KEITHHAM (Krishnaname, “Kirtananandd’) resdesinthe Low Security Correctiond
Indtitution in Butner, North Cardlina. Mr. Ham was a member of the GBC from 1975- 1986.

11.  Defendant THEODORE RICHARD HARRIS (Krishnaname, “Panca Dravida Swami”) resdes
in Cdifornia Mr. Harriswas amember of the GBC from 1977 to 1986.

12.  Defendant THOMASHERTZOG (Krishnaname, “Tamd Krishna Goswami”) resdes a 5430
Gurley Ave, Ddlas, Texas 75223. Mr. Hertzog was amember of the GBC from 1975 to 1999.

13. Defendant EFFREY HICKEY (Krishnaname, “ Jegadish des’) resdesin Horidaw Mr. Hickey
was amember of the GBC from 1975 to 1994.

14.  Defendant GOPAL KHANNA (Krishnaname, “Gopd KrishnaGoswami”) resdes & 1626 Pie
IX Blvd., Montred, Quebec, H1V2C5. Mr. Khannawas a member of the GBC from 1975 to 1999.

15. Defendant HANS KARY (Krishna name, “Hansadutta Svami”) is a resdent of Cloverdde,
Cdifornia Mr. Hary was a member of the GBC from 1975 to 1984.

16. Defendant WILLIAM OGLE (Krishnaname, “Bdavantadas’) isaresdent of New York, New
York. Mr. Ogle was amember of the GBC from 1976 to 1999.

17.  Defendant HOWARD RESNICK (Krishnaname, “Hrdayanandadas Gosvami”) resdesa 153

N. Arnaz Dr., Bevely Hills Cdifornia90211. Mr. Resnick wasa member of the GBC from 1975 to 1999.
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18. Defendant BRUCE SCHARF (Krishna name, “Brahmanandd’) is aresdent of Miami, Horida
Mr. Scharf was amember of the GBC from 1975 to 1987.

19. Defendants Does 1 - 30. Plantiffs are not aware of the true names and capacities, whether
individud, corporate, or otherwise, of defendantsDoes 1 - 30, indusive, and therefore suesad Defendantsby such
ficitious names. Plaintiffs will seek leave of this court to amend this complant to indude the true names and
capacities of the defendants sued hereéin as Does 1 - 30, indusive, when the same have been ascertained. Plaintiffs
areinformed and bdieve, and thereby dlege, that each of the defendants designated herein asa® Defendant Dog’
acted in concert with each and every other defendant, intended to, and did, participatein and causetheevents, acts,
practices and courses of conduct dleged herein, or, dterndively, acted as the principd or agent of the other
defendantsor in the courseand scope of said employment or agency, and proximately caused dameagesandinjuries
thereby to the Plaintiffs as dleged herein.

.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1 Venueis proper in that a subdtantid portion of the events giving rise to the damsiiterated herein
occurred in Ddlas County, Texas, and one or more Defendants areresdents of or havether principd busnessin
the State of Texas

2. The amount in controversy herein exceads the minimum juridictiond reguirements of this Court
exdusve of interest and cogts

3. All Defendants are subject to the jurisdiction of this Court pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81962 et seq.,

the RICO nationwide sarvice of process Satute.
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ORGANIZATION OF DEFENDANTS

Defendant Internationd Society of KrishaConsciousness, ak/al SKCON, and sometimesknownas® Hare
Krishnd’ or “the Hare Krishnas,” is a spiritud indtitution basad on a fath founded in the United States by A.C.
Bhaktivedanta Sivami Prabhupada (alk/a“ Prabhupadd’) in the United Statesin July, 1966.

A. ISKCON'S GOVERNING BOARD

1 The Governing Body Commisson of ISKCON (herein, “GBC”) istheultimateadminidrativeand
governing body of the movement. It was established in 1970, & the direction of Prabhupada, the movement’s
founder. The GBCinitidly conasted of deven high-ranking leedersinthemovement. Although theprimary activity
of the GBC isin the United States, it governs ISKCON worldwide.

B. MOVEMENT

2. |SKCON encouraged many of itsfollowersto forego dl of their materid possessons and
devote ther lives to the furtherance of “Krishna Consciousness”  This often induded the solicitation of
donaions from traveers at arports, public digolay of “chanting” and dreat performances, and sdling various of
Prabhupada s and 1ISKCON’sbooks. Because of the totd devotion demanded of itsfollowers by ISKCON,
adult “devotees’ of ISKCON were encouraged, and, in order to advance within the faith, required to
reinquish their primary parental duties and place their children in |SKCON-founded and sponsored schools,
primerily boarding schoals, known as*“gurukulas”  the outward or Sated purpose being to indoctrinate the
children of ISKCON devatessinto the disciplines of Krishna Consciousness.

C. GURUKULA BOARDING SCHOOLS

3. Thefirg gurukulaboarding school established by ISKCON was located in Ddlas, Texas, ad

commenced operadion in 1972. By 1978, therewere atotd of deven gurukula schoolsin North America,
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induding gurukulasin Los Angdes, Cdifornia Seattle, Washington; and New Vrindaben, Wes Virginia The
gurukula boarding school system in ISKCON was and is administered by the GBC.

4.  Fa fromthe promised transcendentd spiritua and secular education purported to be
dissaminated a the gurukulas, in fact ISKCON' s gurukulas quickly became havens for widespreed physicd,
emationd, menta and sexud child abuse

5. TheDédendants a least in part, established and operated the schoal in order to permit the
parentsto be freed to solicit and raise money for the benefit of the gurus, temple leaders, and ISKCON
corporations.

Rasing funds and didtribution of money were at the core of, and a pattern and practice of, the
Defendant’ swrongful conduct and racketearing practices

ISKCON and its leaders d 0 enriched themsdves by granting specid favorsto large fund rasers and
donors, even if some large donors were drug deders and other crimind dements. The pedid favorsindude,
among others

@ Granting teeching poditions to sexud predetors so they would have access to children for ther

sexud graificaion;

(b)  Giving young girlsfrom the gurukulas as brides to older donor men;

(© Credting “asylum” and aring of protection againg gpprehenson of fugitives induding those

deding illegdly in arms, drugs and murder, within the ISKCON enterpriss

(d  Dedroying evidence and falling to report crimina conduct on the part of ISKCON and

devotees.

6. Although sexud, physicd and emationd abuse has occurred in dmost every ISKCON schodl,

the worst and most widespread abuse was inflicted a gurukulasin Dallas, Texas New Vrindaban, West
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Virginigg Los Angdes Cdifornig; Seditle, Washington; Port Royd, Pennsylvaniaand Lake Huntington, New
York. Additiondly, profound, severe and extensve abuse of minor boys from the United States and Caneda
took place a the ISKCON Vrindaban and Mayapur boarding schoolsin India

D. INDIA BOARDING SCHOOL

7. In aconscious effort to avoid policing and scrutiny by U.SA. child protection agendies
|SKCON took alarge portion of its boarding school activities overseasto India. In India, ISKCON managed
a least two profoundly abusive boarding schools for boys. These were the Vrndavan and Mayapur schools
Both were gaffed and controlled by gppointees of ISKCON who were, for the most part, assgned from the
United States. The students sent there were dmogt exdlusively from the United States, and the manegement
polides, devised and implemented by the GBC, originated inthe U.SA. The Indian schools were among the
worgt offenders and abusers of minor boys, and many of the Indian school teechers and leederswere dso
teachers, leaders and abusersin United States schools

V.

WRONGFUL AND ILLEGAL ACTSOF ABUSE OF MINORS

A. YEARSOF PRIMARY ABUSE

1 The sexud, physcd and emationd abuse of the minor children occurred primarily between the
years 1972 and 1990, dthough abuse continued after 1990 and, it is believed, continuesto the present. The
sexud, physicad and emationd abuse of minor children wasiinflicted on children from as young as 3 years of ege
to 18 years of age, and induded both boys and girls.

2. The abuse to which the ISKCON children were subjected was inflicted on some children for
sverd years. It induded a pattern and practice of sexud abuse of both boys and girls, physicd abuse, and

emotiond abuse. In many indances, the abuse could be accuratdy described astorture of children. Not dl of
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the fallowing described acts of child abuse were carried out on every child, but every plantiff in this casewas
subject to multiple forms of child abuse over extended periods of time, somefor years. Some examples of the
types of abuse and neglect to which the children, ranging in age from 3 yearsto 18 years, were subjected
indude but are not limited to:

B. ABUSE INFLICTED

3. Sexud abuseinduding rape, ord sex, intercourse with children, sexud fonding
of children, and masturbation with children.

4, Physca beatings of children with boards, branches, dubs, and poles

5. Physicdl beatings by adult teachers and school leaders with figs to the head and
gomech.

6. Kicking the children into submisson.

7. Children were in some ingtances made to walk great digancesin bitter
cold, induding show and rain, without jackets, coats, or shoes.

8. Children were often forced to degp on cold floors and in unheeted
rooms.

9. Children were frequently deprived entirdy of medicd care or provided
such inadequate medicd care asto suffer long-term and, in some
ingances, permanent injury. Themedica condiitions for which children
were not trested induded mdaria, hepatitis, ydlow fever, teeth being
knocked out, broken facid bones, and broken bonesin their hands,
often inflicted as they atempted to shidd themsdves from bedtings

10.  Children were sometimeskept in filthy conditions. In a least oneindance, a
locdl group utilized what had recently been a cattle or horse barn for anursery.

11.  Indmos every sthoal the children were kept in severdy overcrowded
conditions, often forced to degp shoulder to shoulder on thefloor or in
smdl roomsin three-high bunkswith 10 or 12 children to eech tiny
room.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The children were physcaly abused by being avakened every day in
the early morning hours (generdly a 4:00 am.) and subjected to acold
shower, after which they were taken, without any bregkfadt, to adally
rdigious service. At some schoals, the children were forced to walk
greet digancesin the dark to attend the sarvice, and oftenin cold or
rainy conditions, dathed only in their thin gown-like “dohti.”

The children were not provided bathroom tissue, but ingtead were
expected to wipe themsdves with thar fingers, after which they would
dip their fingersinto abowl of weter.

As punishment for not deaning themsdves thoroughly, children were
sorubbed with sted wodl until their skin was raw and sometimes
bleeding.

Children were abusad when they were forced to degp on ther wet
blankets or in tubs as punishment if they wet their bedding.

Some children were forced to wear thar soiled underd othes on ther
heads for long periods of time because they had wet themsdlves.

Children were often forced to go without food entirdy, ather because there
was none, or as punishment. \When food was provided, it was dways
inadequate for agrowing child' sdiet.

The inadequate food that was provided was often prepared in
unsanitary conditions, was of very poor quity and so unpleasant thet
even hungry children frequently could not et it. In & lesst one schodl,
the children learned as amatter of routine to remove insects from their
food before edting it.

Each child was expected to eat what they were provided. If they did
not do o, their served portion was kept on their plates until the next
med when it was served again. This process often continued until the
cold food -- even moldy and insect-infested -- was swallowed.

In some schoals, children were forced to lick up their vomit from any
foul food they may have thrown up.

At New Vrindavan, three young boys, about Sx or seven years of age,
who worked in the kitchen, took some food to their hungry friends
They were caught and punished by being gagged, having bags placed
over ther heads, and being put in asmdl room for severd dayswith
only abucket for their waste and no food or water. One of the same
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22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

boyswas later dammed by ateacher into amablewal, resultingina
loss of some teeth and fractured facid bones

Children were controlled by variousthreatsto hurt or kill them and by
punishments. Y oung children, drictly limited to avegetarian diet, were
continualy terrorized when told that non-Kridhnas were medt-egters
that they ate each other, and thet the children, if given to or taken by the
mesat-egters, would themselves be egten.

Children often saw ratsin ther rooms and schools. Some children
(such asthose @ the schoadl in Ddllas) weretdld theratslived ina
particular old doset, and the child would be, and often was, placed in
the dost if they didn't do astold.

Oneform of punishment induded forcing little children to gand on acrate for
long periods of time in a darkened dosat “so the rats would not egt them.”

Vey young children wereiin fact placed in those dark and locked
dostsand Ieft arad and crying for hours a atime. They were locked
overnight in dark cdlarswith dirt floors: One young child was mede to
degp doneintheloft of acold barn for many nights

Sometimes the children were sent by their superiors to massage and
bathe the rdigious gurus and then drink ther now “blessad bath water.”

In some cases, children were suffed into trash barrels for periods of
two to three days, with the lid on, as punishment for rdaivdy trivid

ns

Children were dmost universdly told thet if they disdosed their condition or
complained to thar parents or others, they would be severdy punished. When
complaints were mede, the children were publidy and often severdy begten or
subjected to other forms of punishment.

Girls, asyoung as 12 or 13 years, were frequently “given” or
“promissd’ to an dder maein the movement. Although their marriages
were generdly not sexudly consummeated until the child was @ leest 16
or 17 yearsold, the little girlswere terrorized by the threats, and often
redlity, of being given away by their leeders to become engaged to
mary “drange old men.”

Children were often forced to lie awake in ther beds or degping bags
and ligen astheair little friends were sexudly molested by teechersand
other leaders.
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31l.  Thechildren were emationaly abused by subjecting them to near-totd
parentd and sodietd isolation. In an effort to totdly contral their minds,
the children were, in mogt cases, ssparated and isolated from their
parents and were not dlowed to have regular contact with their parents.
Persond vigts, correspondence, and teephone calswere ether
forbidden or discouraged. Gifts, particularly of food, were intercepted.
For example, one young boy felt abandoned by his parents, and had no
contact with hisfamily for more then ayear. He laer learned the one
smal package of cookies sent by his mother was intercepted and kept
fromhim.

32.  Children were frequently moved to different schodlsin different deates
without the consent (or, Sometimes, knowledge) of parents. Some
children were hidden from parents. Some boys were shipped out of
the country to ISKCON schoolsin India In at least Some cases, after
the parents discovered ther child’s whereabouts and made
arangements for them to come home, ther plane tickets were
intercepted, and torn up in front of the children. Then, these children
were punished for thar parents attempt to bring them home,

33.  Eventhough the children were given by ther parentsto ISKCON to
educate, except for the reading of thar “vedic striptures” the children
recalved little or no education.

34.  Beraus=of near-totd isolation from the outsde world and lack of
education, the children who remained within the ISKCON schools for
extended periods of time were totaly unequipped to enter outsde
sodety. They have experienced extreme difficulty in eaning aliving,
entering and maintaining rdaionships, induding marriage, and in
adgpting to the laws and regulations of sodety. Many arein need of
extended psychalogica and/or vocationd training, rehabilitation, and
medicd care

35.  Thefounder of theingtitution, Prabhupada, wasinformed in 1972, & atime when hetotdly
controlled the inditution, thet extensive physica and sexud aouse of minor ISKCON children was occurring,
but he conceded the wrongdoing from the public, parents and dl but ahandful of dose advisors

36.  Despite having been derted to the physicd, emationd, mentd and sexud abuse of childreniniits

gurukula boarding schools and other schools as early asthe 1970s, ISKCON and the other defendants
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congpired to suppress any public disclosure, or disclosure to gurukula children's parents, of the pattern and
practice of rampant dbuse a itsgurukulas. |SKCON fraudulently concedled thisinformation for decades,
dlowing the offending gurukula teachers and supervisors continued access to children for their sexud
gratification and to subject them to physcd, emotiond and mentd abuse. Defendants aso endeavored to
dissuade and discourage parents of gurukula children from visting the schools Thiswas done é leest in part to
preserve the secrecy surrounding the abuse of the Krishna children.

37.  ISKCON, by and through its GBC, knew that if it did not concedl and keep secret the sexud,
physicd, and emationd abuseiit hed learned wias taking place in many of its schools, the very viability of the
movement would be jeopardized. |SKCON would face alarge loss of sudents and their parents from the
movement and with that alarge loss of funds and fundraisers: Theindividud income of many members of the
GBC would have been adversdy impacted. Itsleaders would dso have been subject to crimind and avil
sanctions The GBC made conscious decisons to conced the fact thet injury hed been, and was continuing to
be, inflicted on minor boys and girls

V.

WRONGFUL AND ACTIONABLE CONDUCT OF THE DEFENDANTS

The actionable conduct described herein, unless dated otherwise, refers to the conduct of dl the
defendant assodiaions, corporations and individuds, both acting callectively and sngularly, and is dated as
|SKCON's conduct or acts.

A. NEGLIGENCE

1 At dl timesmaterid heren from 1971 through 1996, Defendant 1SKCON, through the GBC,
operated and supervised the gurukulas across the United Statesand in India. The teechers and supervisors a

the boarding schools and gurukulas acted upon the ddegated authority of ISKCON asitsagents. The gurukula
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teachers and supervisors came to know the Plaintiffs and gained access to them because of thelr datus as
leeders of ISKCON indoctrination. The gurukula teachers and supervisors engaged in the described wrongful
conduct while in the course and scope of thar duties with ISKCON and its effiliated entities. Therefore,
ISKCON isliable for the wrongful conduct of its gurukula teechers and supervisors.

2. ISKCON negligently sdlected and placed the offending gurukula teechers and supervisorsin
poditions of trugt, confidence and authority and in direct, unsupervisad contact with minor children, when they
ether had no knowledge of the teachers and supervisors backgrounds or ISKCON had actud or gpparent
knowledge of these individuas dangerous propensities towards physicd, enationa, mentd, and sexud abuse
of the gurukula children.

3. |SKCON failed to establish written guides and procedures to ssfeguard the children entrusted
toit.

4. ISKCON failed to provide proper training to its teachers and supervisors.

5. |SKCON encouraged, through its pattern and practice, the herein described acts of wrongful
and illegd conduct by its agents.

6. ISKCON failed to warn Plantiffs or their families of the offending gurukula schoal teechers and
Upervisors: dangerous propengties towards abuse of minor children. Indeed, it was ISKCON' S paitern and
practice to encourage this abusve behavior from the teechers

7. 1SKCON was under aduty to disclose the extent of the problem of physicd, emationd, mentd,
and sxud abuse by gurukula teechers and supervisors towards the gurukula children, and the severe
psychologica problems thet would result from such abuse if not properly treated, but falled to make such
disdosures

8. ISKCON failed to notify state and governmentd authorities of known and suspected abuse
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when it wasthe law thét it do .

9. |SKCON failed to provide reasonable supervison of its teachers and supervisors.

10.  ISKCON faled to provide adequete g&ffing to provide a ssfe environment.

11.  ISKCON falled to provide adequate funding to its schools, even though it represented to
parents and others it would do S0, and despite the facts, parents and others raised larger amounts of money for
the operation of ISKCON enterprises.

12,  ISKCON falled to provide adequate food, dothing, shelter and education in its boarding
schoals, even though it represented to parents and others it was doing 0.

13.  Thedder sudents were sometimes gopointed “monitors” The Defendants knew and
encouraged monitors to abuse and beet the children. Actud rapes and begtings of children by the older
“monitors’ wereignored by the ISKCON enterprise.

14.  ISKCON'sconduct during the time and occasions of the abuse in question resulted in both
negligent and intentiond infliction of emationd distress upon the Rantiffs

B. |ISKCON'SBREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

15.  ISKCON, asardigious organizetion, is granted goedid privileges and immunitiesin the United
Sates by sodiety and isin agpedd fiduciary rdaionship with the Plaintiffs. 1SKCON owed the Plaintiffs, who
were entrugted to its care, the highest duty of trust and confidence and was required to act in the childrens best
interest. 1SKCON's actions and inactions, as described herein, violated thet rdlationship when ISKCON failed
to act with the highest degree of trugt and confidence to protect the Plantiffs from physica, emationd, mentd
and sexud abuse

16. Faintiffs and their parents were, at the rdevant times, degply devout followers of defendants.

Faintiffs and ther parents entrusted their entire physcd, emationd, economic, and spiritud lives to the control
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and direction of Defendants and to the Defendant entities of which Plaintiffs were members and/or devotess.
Faintiffs and their parents rdied upon the promises and representations of the Defendants.

17. As devoted children, unableto care for or make decigonsfor themsdves, and entrusted in the
care of the child care fadilities and schools operated by the Defendants, Plantiffs were owed afiduciary duty by
eech of theindividud entities and by dl the Defendants. By failing to take stepsto prevent, detect, and
minimize the harm from the indidents of abuse suffered by Plaintiffs the Defendants breached ther fidudary
duty to Rantiffs

(i) CONSTRUCTIVE FRAUD

18.  Asfidudaiesof Fantiffs Defendants owed aduty to Plaintiffs to inform ther parents/guardians
of thefact thet the child care fadilities and schools operated by defendants were staffed by ungudlified
individudls, did not contain suffident saffing to prevent, detect, and to minimize the effects of incidents of abuse,
and that the child care fadilities and schools were below the child safety standards that would reasonably be
anticipated.

19. By reason of the failure to meke these disdosures to Plaintiffs or Flantiffs guardians, and the
resulting detrimentd reliance thereon, the Defendants are guiilty of condructive fraud.

(i) BREACH OF CONTRACT/BREACH OF WARRANTY

20. At thetime that the ISKCON Defendants acoepted Plaintiffsinto the schools and child care
fadlities operated by them, (and, at the same time, collected payment from Rlantiffs parents for schod tuition
and/or room and board), they did, by both their conduct and verbd satements, expresdy and impliedly agree
and warrant, in exchange for vauable condderation, to provide good qudity child care, schoaling, boarding
savicesin asdfe, nurturing environment, such that Rlaintiffswould, among ather things, nat be intentionally or

negligently harmed. Plaintiffs were intended third-party benefidiaries of this express and implied agreement and

PLAINTIFFS ORIGINAL COMPLAINT - Page 19

£§06060010.wpd



warranty between the Defendants and their parents.
21 |SKCON and defendants breached their express and implied contract and warranty to
Rantiffs, and as areault of those breaches, Flantiffs were harmed.

C. DEFENDANTSBREACHED THEIR STATUTORY DUTY

22.  Inmog jurisdictions where the Defendants operated, they were under a Satutory duty to
protect children entrusted to their care from physica and sexud abuse and to report to various child wdfare
and child protective agendes any known or suspected occurrences of sexud or physicd abuse of children. The
Defendants breeched their Satutory duty in that: (a) they engaged in apattern and practice of, or knowingly
permitted thair agentsto, physicaly and/or sexudly abuse minor children; and (b) the Defendants learned of
sugpected sexud and physca aouse of children but conceded its exigence from gate authorities, and to this
day continue to fall to report known indances of physica or sexud abuse of children entrugted to its care,

D. GROSSNEGLIGENCE

23. |SKCON, at the time and on the occasonsin question, acted with heedless and reckless
disregard for the sefety of the Rlaintiffs, which disregard was the result of conscious indifference to the rights,
wefare and safety of the Rlantiffsin violation of the laws of the State of Texas and other Sates

E. DEFENDANTS NEGLIGENT ASSUMPTION OF RISK OF INTENTIONAL OR
CRIMINAL CONDUCT

24.  Pantffsincorporae by reference asif st forth at length herein dl previous dlegations st forth
above, and assart that ISKCON and the other Defendants are liable for acts and/or omissions pursuant to the
Regtatement (Second) of Torts, Section 302B, under thelegd doctrine of negligent assumption of risk of
intentional or criminal conduct.

An act or an omisson may be negligent if the actor redlizes or should redize

thet it involves an unreasonable risk of harm to another through the conduct of
the other or athird person which isintended to cause harm, even though such
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conduct isarimindl.
Restatement (Second) of Torts, Section 302B.
25.  Defendant ISKCON and the other Defendants redlized or should have redized that the abusive
gurukulateachers and supervisors posad an unreasonable risk of harm to minor children, induding Plantiffs

F. DEFENDANTS NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION INVOLVING RISK OF
PHYSICAL HARM

26.  Pantffsincorporae by reference asif st forth at length herein dl previous dlegations st forth
above, and assart that ISKCON and the other Defendants are liable for acts and/or omissions pursuant to the
Restatement (Second) of Torts, Section 311, under the legal doctrine of negligent misrepresentation involving
risk of physcd harm.

(1))  Onewho negligently givesfdse information to another is subject to lidhility for physca

harm causad by action taken by the other in reasonable rdiance upon such information, where

such harm results

@  totheother, or
(b)  tosuchthird persons asthe actor should expect to be put in peril by the
action taken.

(2  Suchnegligence may congs of falure to exercise reesonable care

€) in ascartaining the accuracy of the informetion, or
(b)  inthemanner inwhich it iscommunicated.
Restatement (Second) of Torts, Section 311.

27.  Deendant ISKCON and the other Defendants informed parents of the abused children thet
ISKCON would provide a safe and wholesome environment for their children. Defendants fallure to ascartain
and gpprise Flantiffs and their families of the propensty of offending gurukula teechers and supervisorsto
physcdly, emationdly, mentaly and sexudly abuse minor children, and ISKCON and the other Defendants
representation thet the offending gurukula teechers and supervisors were not dangerous to young children

placed Rantiffsin peril, and caused them injury.

PLAINTIFFS ORIGINAL COMPLAINT - Page 21

£§06060010.wpd



V1.

CONSPIRACY AND FRAUDUL ENT CONCEALMENT

1 |SKCON has acted in concert with the other Defendants in a paittern and practice to
fraudulently conced the extent and neture of the physcd, emationd, menta, and sexud aouse occurring & its
gurukulas, boarding schoals, and child care centers, aswell as the harmful effects of that abuse, continuing
through the present day.

2. All Defendants herein entered into acivil conspiracy to act in concart, accompanied by a
mesting of the minds regarding concerted action, the purpases of which were to suppress and minimize public
knowledge (as well as widespread knowledge within ISKCON) of the rampant physica, emotiond, menta and
sexud abuse of minor children in the gurukulas by teechers and supervisors, and to take a uniform postion and
goproach to the handling of reports of duse. This uniform position and gpproach was designed to avoid
crimind prosecution of the gurukula teachers and supervisor offenders, to avoid civil litigetion and to prevent or
minimize damsfor dameges, to avoid public exposure of the sexud and other abuse of children by teechers
and suparvisors a the gurukulas, to protect the reputation of |SKCON and “Hare Krishnes® from scandd, and
thus to insure the continued financid contributions of Krishna devotees and outsde supportersto ISKCON.
This congpiracy to conced indudes gpaliaion of evidence and isongoing. Basad on these actions, the Plaintiffs
dlege thet the Defendants are equiitably estopped from assarting any defense of limitations.

3. Thisongoing congpiracy and concert of action was carried out by Defendants to fraudulently
conced the fact that Defendants have committed acts of negligence, gross negligence, fraud and breach of
fidudiary duty, and the other wrongful conduct described herein, and have engaged in concerted action to
commit acts of negligence, gross negligence, fraud and breach of fidudary duty.

4.  Inthedsence of this congpiracy and concert of action, Defendants would have responded to
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repested notice of the abuse children suffered a the hands of gurukula teachers and supervisors and issued
generd and pecific warnings to the entire body of Krishna devotees, particulaly the parents of children inthe
gurukulas. Had a proper warning been issued, the offending teachers and supervisors would never have hed
unsupervised access to Flantiffs and other minor children, and this physicd, emationd, mentd and sexud abuse
and exploitation would never have occurred. Thus, Defendants actions in furtherance of this congpiracy area
proximate cause of theinjury and dameges herain.

5. Asapat of ther congpiracy to conced the physcd, mentd, emotiond and sexud abuse of
children by the offending gurukula teachers and supervisors, Defendants followed a practice of refusing to
investigate suspected abuse, or to disdose and warn of the dangers of physicd, mentd, emotiond and sexud
abuse by gurukula teachers and supervisors despite actua notice and knowledge of the risk deting back over
two decades Defendants failed to aggressvely address abuse issues by such actions as promul gating proper
paliciesfor the gopointment of gurukulateechers and supervisors

6. Fantiffsdlege that ISKCON offidds, with others as pleed herein, dso engaged ina
congpiracy to avoid the prosacution of gurukula teechers and supervisors and to cover up the physicd, mentd,
emotiond and sexud abuse of minor children suffered in the gurukulas. The purpose of this congpiracy wasto
prevent crimind prasscution, avoid adverse publidity, prevent daims for damages by the numerous minor
victims, and to avoid exposure of this congpiracy designed to conced the daims arising from the crimes of these
gurukula teachers and supervisors gppointed by 1ISKCON through the GBC. Further, offidas of ISKCON, in
furtherance of the overdl congpiracy dleged, engaged in affirmative acts to conced the exisence of this
congpiracy, and to conced acts of fraud, breach of fidudiary duty, negligence, and gross negligence.

A. DEFENDANTS CONCERT OF ACTION
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7. Fantiffsincorporate by reference asif set forth a length herein dl previous dlegations st forth
above, and assart that ISKCON and the other Defendants are ligble for acts and/or omissions pursuant to the
Restatement (Second) of Torts, Section 876, under the legdl doctrine of concert of action, and as agents of
these entities, under which theories Plaintiffs seek dameages from dl Defendantsjointly and severdly.

B. DEFENDANTS INTENTIONAL AND NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL
DISTRESS

8 Fantiffsincorporate by reference asif set forth a length herein dl previous dlegations st forth
above.

9. In adminigering the abuse againg Alaintiffs, in congpiring to cover up that abuse, inratifying the
acts of those gurukula workers who adminigtered the abuse, and in congpiring to assg those gurukulaworkers
in avoiding detection by law enforcement agendes, Defendants engaged in a pattern and practice of outrageous
conduct that intentiondly inflicted severe emationd digtress upon Rlantiffs, for which dl defendants areligble
bath in actud and punitive damages

VILI.

RICO VIOLATIONS

A. VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL RACKETEER-INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT
ORGANIZATIONSACT (RICO) 18 U.S.C. 88 1962(C) AND 1962(D)

1 Pantiffs restate and incorporate herein the foregoing dlegations contained in this Complaint.
2. Thisdam for relief is assarted againgt each of the Defendants and arisssunder 18 U.SC. §
1962(c) and (d) of RICO, which provide
(© It shdl be unlawful for any person employed by or associated with any
enterprise engaged in, or the attivities of which affect, interdate or foreign commerce, to conduct or participeate,

directly or indirectly, in the conduct of such enterprisgs effairs through a pattern of racketeering adtivity....
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(d) It shdl be unlawful for any person to conspire to vidlae any of the provisons of
subsection . . . (€) of this section.

3. At dl rdevant times, each of the Defendants was a"person” within the meaning of 18 U.SC. 8
1961(3), as each of the Defendants was " cgpable of holding alegd or bendficid interest in property.”

4, At dl rdevant times, Defendants have condtituted an "enterprisg’, within the meaning of 18
U.SC. 81961(4). Thisenterpriseisan ongoing organization whose condituent dements function asa
continuing unit in maximizing the sales of Krishnall SKCON literature and pargpherndia, and in concart to bilk
followers, induding Plantiffs and their parents and/or guardians, out of their incomes and net worth. The public
relaions enterprise has an ascertainable structure and purpose beyond the scope of Defendants predicate acts
and thelr conspiracy to commit such acts. This“Krishna Enterprise’ has engaged in, and its activities have
afected, intersate and foreign commerce. The Krishna Enterprise continues to date through the concerted
activities of Defendants to actively disguise the nature of their wrongdoing, to conced the proceeds thereof, and
to conced Defendants participation in the enterprise in order to avoid and/or minimize their exposure to
aimind and dvil pendltiesand damages.

5. Each Defendant has been assodiated with the Krishna Enterprise. Each Defendant helped to
direct the enterprisgs actions and manage its affairs. Each Defendant conducted or participated, directly or
indirectly, in the conduct of the Krishna Enterprises afars through a pattern of racketearing activity in violation
of 18 U.SC. §1962(c). The Defendants paitern of racketeering activity dates from at leest 1971 and
continues to the presant, and threstens to continue in the future.

6. The Krishna Enterprise exists ssparate and gpart from the Defendants racketeering cts. Itis
an ongoing organization whose members have been in frequent communication. It has aconsensud

decison-making sructure used to coordinate Strategy, suppress the truth about the abuse in the gurukulas, bilk
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followers, induding Rlantiffs out of their incomes and net worth, and atherwise further Defendants fraudulent
heme

7. Each Defendant "conduct{ed] or participate[d], directly or indirectly, in the conduct of [the]
enterprisgs effars through a pattern of racketeering activity,” in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1962(c). The
Defendants pattern of racketeering activity dates from 1971 through the present and threstens to continue in
the future.

8. The Defendants multiple predicate acts of racketearing indude:

a Mail and wirefraud in violation of 18 U.SC. 88 1341 and 1343. The Defendants
engaged in schemesto defraud members of the public and private and governmentd entities which bear
responghility for child welfare. Defendants executed or atempted to execute such schemes through the use of
the United States mails and through transmissons by wire, radio and tdevison communicationsin interdate
commerce,

b. Additiond predicate acts of racketearing include obgtruction of judice in the form of
thregtening and intimidating witnessesin vidlaion of 18 U.S.C. § 1512, and thregtening to retdiate agandt
witnessss, inviolaion of 18 U.S.C. § 1513. Upon informetion and bdlief, the Defendants have attempted to
influence tesimony, principaly by making thregts. These vidationsindude atempts to influence the tesimony
of former ISKCON members and their families through threets, intimidation, and herassment, physica harm
and murder.

C. Predicate acts indude sending fraudulent Krishna literature and gurukula advertisaments
through the malls and/or usng the mails to promote and advertise Krishnaand the gurukulas, in violation of 18
U.SC. § 1461, which prohibits use of the mailsto ddiver any "atide or thing designed, adapted, or intended .

.. for any indecent or immord use' and use of the mailsto drculate any " paper, writing, advertisement, or
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representation thet any artide, insdrument, substances, drug, medicine, or thing may, or can be used or gpplied .
.. for any indecent or immora purpose’ and any "description caculated to induce or incite a person to o use
or goply any such atide, indrument, substance, drug, medicine, or thing.”

d. Predicate acts of racketeering dso indude attempting to intimidate one or more
witnessesin pending or progpective legd proceedings, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 88 1512, 1513, and 18 U.SC.
§ 1951(a).

e Thetadticsindude the use of fadllitiesin interdate or foreign commerce to didribute the
proceads of unlawful activity and otherwise to promote, manage, establish, carry on or fadilitate the promoation,
management, establishment, or carrying on of unlawful activity, in violation of 18 U.SC. § 1952,

f. The predicate acts d o indude engaging in mondary transectionsinvolving the
proceads of crimein violation of 18 U.SC. § 1957, which prohibits "knowingly engag[ing] or atempt[ing] to
engagein amondary transaction in arimindly derived property thet is of avaue greater than $10,000 and is
derived from specific unlanful activity," induding mail and wirefraud. 18 U.SC. 88 1957(f)(3) and 1956
@@)(A).

9. Theactsform a"pattern” of racketering attivity. They have been rdaed in their common
objectives of maximizing the wedth of the Krishna Enterprise, mideading the public and government regulators
which bear repongihility for child wdfare, and suppressing the truth concarmning the abuse teking placeinthe
gurukulas. These acts have hed the same or Smilar purposes, results, participants, victims and methods of
commisson. The acts have been conggently repeated and are capable of further repetition.

10.  Each defendant dso conspired to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), in violaion of 18U.SC. §
1962(d).

11.  Pantiffshave been injured in ther property by reason of Defendants violations of 18 U.SC.
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8§88 1962(c) and (d), because Rlaintiffs have been required to incur Sgnificant costs and expenses attributable to
gurukula abuse and trestments they have been forced to incur as aresult thereof. 1n the absence of the
Defendants violation of 18 U.S.C. 88 1962(c) and (d), these costs and expenses would have been
ubstantialy reduced or diminated dtogether.

12, Under the provisonsof 18 U.SC. § 1964(c), Fantiffs are entitled to bring this action and to
recover herein treble damages, the costs of bringing this suit, and reasonable atorneys fees.

B. VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL RACKETEER-INFLUENCED AND
CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONSACT —18U.S.C. 88 1962(A) AND (D)

13.  Thisdam for rdief isassarted againg each of the Defendants, and arisssunder 18 U.SC. 8

1962(a) and (d) of RICO, which provide

@ It Sl be unlawful for any person who has received any income derived, directly- or
indirectly, from a pattern of racketeering activity... to use or inves, directed, or indirectly, any part of such
income, or the proceeds of such income, in acquigtion of and, interest in, or the establishment or operaion of,
any enterprisswhich isengaged in, or the adtivities of which affet, interdate or foreign commerce

(d) It Shdl be unlawful for any person to congoire to violate any of the provisons of
ubsection (9). . . of this section.

14.  Atdl rdevant times, each of the Defendantswas a"'person” within the meaning of 18 U.SC. 8
1961 (3), as each of the Defendants was " capable of holding alegd or beneficid interest in property.”

15.  Atdl rdevant times Defendants have condituted an enterprise within the meaning of 18 U.SC.
81961(4). TheKrishna Enterprise and its adtivities have an effect on interdate commerce in that the enterprise
Is engaged in the business of sdlidting funds and sdling Krishnalliterature, and promoting the atendance of
children in their gurukulas, throughout the United States and, in fact, dl over theworld.

16.  Defendants have engaged in apattern of racketeering activity which dates from 1971 through
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the present and threatens to continue in the future. The Defendants multiple predicate acts of racketesring,

which generated income for the Defendants, are st forth above and are more particularly described therein.

17.  Defendants have used or invested ther illiat proceeds, generated through the pattern of
racketeering activity, directly or indirectly in the acquidition of aninterest in, or the establishment or operation
of, eech enterprisein violation of 18 U.SC. § 1962(a). Defendants use and invesment of theseillicit proceeds
in each enterpriseis for the spedific purpose and has the effect of suppressing and conceding informeation
regarding theincidents of child abuse & the gurukulas

18.  Each defendant dso conspired to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(a), in violaion of 18U.SC. §
1962(d).

19.  Pantiffshave been injured in ther property by reason of Defendants vidlaionsof 18 U.SC. §
1962(a) and (d) in that Plaintiffs have been required to incur Sgnificant cogts and expenses atributable to
gurukula abuse and the trestments and counsdling they have been forced to incur as aresult thereof. Under the
provisonsof 18 U.SC. § 1964(c), Plantiffs are entitled to bring this action and to recover herein treble
damages, the cods of bringing this sLit and reasonable atorneys fees.

VIII.

DAMAGESOF PLAINTIFES

Damagesindude but are nat limited to the fallowing:

1. Asareault of theincidents of abuse described above, Plaintiffs have suffered, and will continue
to suffer, extreme emoationd trauma, pain and suffering, and chronic post-traumetic stress disorder.

2. Faintiffs have suffered Medicd and Psychothergpeutic expense, aneed for thergpeutic service,

diminished earning cgpedity and logt earnings, sodid stigmatization, reduced educationd attainments, and
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ubgantid generd dameges

3. Pantiffs have experienced both physcd and psychologicd pain and suffering and mentd
anguish in the past and in dl reasonable probahility will sustain physicd and psychologicd pain and aufferingin
the future as aresuit of their injuries

4. Many Raintiffs have incurred medica expensesin the past and in dl reasonable probaility will
continue to incur medica expenses asaresult of the incidents described herein,

5. A dgnificantly large proportion of FRlantiff ISKCON children have become dcohalics, drug
users unwed maothers, and suiddes. They suffer from a profound sense of guilt, heplessness, and loss of Hif-
edeam. They dl suffer from pogt-traumetic stress syndrome as aresult of their childhood experience.

6. Plantiffs collectively seek $200,000,000 in regtitution for ther actud damages.

7. Plantiffs saek punitive damagesin the collective amount of $200,000,000, in order to punish
and deter the outrageous conduct taken in heedless and reckless disregard for the safety of Plantiffsand, asa
result of Defendants conscious indifference to the rights, wefare and safety of Plantiffsin violation of the laws
of the State of Texas, other dates and the United Sates.

8. Paintiffs seek triple damages and attorney fees as provided by the RICO Satute,

IX.

REQUEST FOR INJUNCTION AGAINST FURTHER SEXUAL,
EMOTIONAL ORPHYSICAL ABUSE OF MINOR CHILDREN

Fantiffs beieve and therefore dlege that the pattern and practice of physcd, emationd, and sexud
abuse to minor children currently enrolled in or resding & the Defendants gurukulas, schodls, temples, and
child carefadlities, isongoing and continuesto thisday. Plantiffs therefore ask this Court to issue atemporary
injunction prohibiting Defendants from engaging in any further sexud, emationd, or physica aouse of the minor

children of ISKCON followers currently enrolled in or resding & Defendants gurukulas, schodls, temples, and
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child carefadlities, and, upon find trid of this mater, to issue aparmanent injunction againg Defendants from
engaging in or alowing any such abuse of sad minor children.
X.

REQUEST FOR ORDER PROHIBITING DESTRUCTION
OR SPOLIATION OF EVIDENCE

Faintiffs request this Court to immediatdy issue an ORDER indructing the Defendants not to destroy,
discard or spoil any documents or records, whether written, recorded, or gored dectronicaly, that may be or
may have become rdevant to any issuein this quit.

XI.

STATEMENTSTO THE COURT

1 Fantiffs plead ddayed discovery of ther dams againgt Defendants despite the exerdse of
reesonable diligence on ther part, thustalling the datute of limitations

2. Raintiffs plead delayed discovery of the harm causad by physica, emationd, mentd and sexud
abuse and explaitations by the gurukula teachers and supervisors and the dday in trestment despite the exercise
of reasonable diligence on ther part, thustalling the datute of limitations

3. Rantiffs plead fraud and fraudulent concedment of this fraud on the part of Defendarts; thus
sugpending the running of limitationsasto dl dams

4, Faintiffs plead fraudulent concedment of facts under Defendants contral giving riseto this
cause of action againg dl Defendants, thus suspending the running of limitations.

5. Rantiffs plead breech of fidudary duty, induding the duty to disdlase, agangt dl Defendants,
thus suspending the running of limitations againg dl Defendants

6. Faintiffs plead a concart of action, acongoiracy to conced negligence, to commiit fraud and to

fraudulently conced the acts and the existience of the fraud and conpiracy, thus sugpending the running of

PLAINTIFFS ORIGINAL COMPLAINT - Page 31

£§06060010.wpd



limitations againg dl Defendants

7. Raintiffs dlege thet the actions of the Defendants have caused them to suffer an emationdly
unsound mind asto the Defendants, thus suspending the running of limitations, pursuant to Section 16.001 of
the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code:

8. Raintiffs alege that the actions of dl Defendants, because of their conduct, Satements and
promises, predude them from daiming abear by limitationsto any of Rantiffs dams.  Fantiffs thus pleed the
doctrine of equitable estoppd.

XIl.

JURY DEMAND

Faintiff hereby requests and demands atrid by jury.
XIlI.

CLAIM FOR PREJUDGMENT AND POST-JUDGMENT INTEREST

Rlaintiffs herein daim prejudgment and post-judgment interest in accordance with Artidle 5069-1.05 of
V.A.T.S and any other gpplicable law.

For these reasons, Plantiffs pray that Defendants be served and cited to appear and answer herein, thet
atemporary injunction issue againg any physicd, sexud or emotiond abuse of minors under their contral, thet
an ORDER beimmediatdy issued againg destruction or spoliation of evidence herein, and upon find hearing of
this cause, a permanent injunction againgt further abuse beissued, and that Rlantiffs have judgment againgt
Defendants, jointly and severdly, for damages described herein, for cost of auit, interest as dlowable by lav

and for such other rdlief to which Raintiffs may be judtly entitied.
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Respectfully submitted,

LAW OFHCES OF WINDLE TURLEY, P.C.

Winde Turley
State Bar No. 20304000

Patrick C. Patterson
State Bar No. 15603560

6440 North Centra Expressway
1000 Universty Tower

Ddlas Texas 75206
Teephone No. 214/691-4025
Telecopier No. 214/361-5802
Emal: win@wturley.com
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